

Presses & Automation – Since 1975

Instruction Manual for SF unit



Dear customers,

Thank you for your purchase, we look forward to providing the best customer experience.

According to feedback and our service experience, the most important factor to maintain the initial precision and effectiveness of the machine is to use it properly and maintain it in a timely manner.

The key of our success is our ability to manufacture presses to our customers' specifications to meet their needs & provide the best customer's experience.

Please call our sale manager or the local office if you have any questions while reading this manual or using the machine.

To utilizing the unit properly, please read this manual carefully. Appreciated to purchase our equipment!

AZIMUTH MACHINERY





Safety of operation

This manual is written in order to become familiar with all the functions and possible applications of our machine. It contains important instruction about how to use the machine safely; according to the purpose designated.

Following these instructions is not only essential to avoid risks. It also reduces repair costs and down-time and increases the products reliability and service-life. Anyone who works with the machine should follow the instructions in this manual, particularly the safety related instructions.

Additionally local rules and regulations relating to environmental safety and accident prevention may be applied.

User-responsibility

Only allow persons to work with the machine who are familiar with the general instructions on how to work safely and to prevent accidents. The use of the instrument should have been instructed duly *THE SAFETY Chapter* and the warnings in this manual should have been read and understood.

Before commencing work anyone apponited to work with the machine should pay attention to the general regulations to working safety and accident prevention. The safety chapter and the warnings in this manual should have been read and understood.

4. Dangers

This machine is designed and manufactured according to advanced technical standards and recognized safety regulations. However, improper use of the machine for work may result in a danger to the life and health of the operator or others, or damage to the machine or other property. Therefore the machine should only be used for its designated purpose, and in a perfect technical condition, Any defect that could have a negative effect on safety should be repaired immediately.

5. Designated purpose

The *electronically controlled program of Azimuth machines* is specially designed for pressing and riveting sheets of various materials.





AZIMUTH will not be held liable for damage resulting from improper use. Designated purpose also includes properly observing all instructions in the operation manual, and adherence to inspection and maintenance schedules.

6. Copyright

The copyright of this operating manual remains with AZIMUTH MACHINERY.

This operating manual is intended solely for the user and his personnel.Infringement of this restriction may lead to legal action may be taken if this restriction is infringed upon

7. Manufacturer's & Supplier's address

Adresse : 6040 QC-132, Sainte-Catherine, QC J5C 1B6 Téléphone : (450) 632-8080 Province : Québec Countray : CANADA SALES@AZIMUTHPRESS.COM https://azimuthpress.com/





Contents	
Safety of operation	
User-responsibility	1
Table of Figures	4
SAFETY INSTRUCTIONS & INSTALLATION	5
ATTENTION OF MOVING MACHINES	7
ATTENTION BEFORE OPERATION	7
ATTENTION DURING OPERATION	8
ATTENTION AFTER OPERATION	8
ATTENTION OF MAINTENANCE	9
Mechanical Overview	
Adjusting Feed height Adjustment	
Guiding rolls	
Straightener Adjustment	
Percentage of penetration	
Machine Capacity	
Feeder Adjustment	
Adjusting the PLS outputs (Feed, reset cam & Pilot Release)	
Control Overview	
Main Screen	24
Manual Mode	
Recipes	
Components of a recipe	
Alarms	
Troublehsoothing	
Feeder Signals & Press Communication	
Maintenance Settings	
ANNEXE 1 ASSEMBLY DRAWING	

Azimuth Machinery – Instruction Manual SF





Table of Figures

Figure 1- Mechanical Overview	
Figure 2 - Passline adjustment display	
Figure 3- Entrance rolls guide	
Figure 4 - Straightener Adjustment	
Figure 5 - Straightener Adjustement2	
Figure 6 - Straightener Rolls configuration	
Figure 7 Straightener Rolls - Negative entrance wheel	
Figure 8 - Straightener capabilities	
Figure 9 – SF2 Straightener Capabilities 2	
Figure 10 - Feeding rolls adjustment	
Figure 11 - Scenario of feeding calculation	
Figure 12 - Main Screen	
Figure 13- Manual mode screen	
Figure 14- How to pass material throught SF unit	
Figure 15 - Recipe Screen	
Figure 16- Alarms Screen	
Figure 17 - Alarm Screen	
Figure 18 - Troubleshooting table	
Figure 19 - Maintenance Screen	





SAFETY INSTRUCTIONS & INSTALLATION

- 1. Equipment in particular note of the parts are attached to some safety warning sign, please fully comply with the warning instructions on the nameplate.
- 2. Carefully read and understand the instructions manual, warnings and warning nameplate content before, do not perform operation if you do not comply with the contents described or ignoring warnings may result in serious injury or death.
- 3. Correct operation is the customer's responsibility.
- 1. Warning Nameplate Maintenance
 - A. Attached to the device for all warnings nameplate, must confirm that the above content to see things clearly. If the above when stained with dirty stains, use a cloth, water or soapy water to remove dirt stains, do not use organic solvents or gasoline for cleaning.
 - B. Warning plate breakage, loss, or the above text, identify unclear when shown, please replace new warning nameplate. Please make sure to replace the warning nameplate nameplate as the original warning.
 - C. Replace posted warning nameplate member, you'll need to replace the new warning nameplate.
- 2. Nameplate Description

Rotating or moving parts:

A. It posted a warning on the device nameplate parts of the rotating parts or moving parts, in order to prevent injuries, Prohibition close during the machine is running.







It indicates that part of a rotating rollers, etc., do not touch during working.



It indicates that part of a rotating gear, etc., do not touch during working.



Represents the part during equipment operation have material top out, in order to prevent injuries, Prohibite close to Machine during working.



B. It indicates that the site has a high - voltage, turn off the power before open the door or open the cover, if not, it may result in death or serious injury.







ATTENTION OF MOVING MACHINES

- 1. Use rope for lifting operations.
- 2. Workers doing crane lifting operation of this device must have the relevant qualifications:
 - A. Mobile cranes special training completion certificate.
 - B. Hook operation skills training completion certificate.
- 3. Handling equipment should clear away before moving all types of processed or unprocessed work pieces, and check if the various types of fasteners on the device is loose and tighten them.

ATTENTION BEFORE OPERATION

- 1. Before using the equipment, develop operational plans to exclude security risks:
 - A. Before using the equipment, develop operational plans so that all relevant workers thoroughly understand the meaning of all signals, marking and symbols.
 - B. In preventive measures, we should be careful to check the security measures, in order to confirm that there is no security risk at the beginning of the job.
- 2. Put on labor appliances: It is very dangerous during work without helmet, goggles, dust masks and work gloves.





ATTENTION DURING OPERATION

- 1. To comply with the rules of operation:
 - A. Do not work when the protective cover is removed or the case open.

Do not climb over the security fence or physically probe into the fence.

B. If being gripped or involved, the person might get a major injury or death.

The operator shouldn't leave their jobs during equipment operation, and should always pay attention to all parts of any abnormal (abnormal sound, smell, heat, vibration, etc.).

They should cease operation immediately & Contact Azimuth. Where the operator can not rule out the fault, they shall promptly notify the maintenance staff.

When the operator leaves the device, or during the device adjustment, cleaning or lubrication, it should be stopped and powered off.

- 2. Lubricating, refueling and cleaning of the machine is prohibited during operation.
- 3. When abnormal display lights up or abnormal stop, please quickly deal with it.
 - A. Abnormal display lights up: for unknown reasons, stop running immediately.
 - B. After resetting, observe for a while to confirm the issue is solved.

ATTENTION AFTER OPERATION

- 1. When the operation ends, it is necessary to turn off the power switch.
- 2. The machine has to be stopped when doing maintenance.
- 3. Be careful to not let water/coolant get into electrical system
- 4. Water getting into the internal operating panel and control panel, will cause malfunction. Do not clean with steam and water.





ATTENTION OF MAINTENANCE

- 1. Warning
 - A. Unrelated persons are not allowed to enter:
 - a. Non-maintenance workers can not shut down the ongoing maintenance work.
 - b. When oscillating tools, pay special attention to people around. When the job postural isn't stable, pay more attention.
 - B. Hazardous actions:
 - a. In the maintenance operation, the deputy should be configured of two or more personnel.
 - b. When an emergency occurs, deputies to be able to immediately stop the machine. Touching the moving part is prohibited.
 - c. Getting involved with the body or the turning shaft, rollers, chains, etc., will lead to personal injury.
 - C. Be careful when removing components with internal pressure
 - a. Filter, pneumatic cylinder and high-pressure air line sometimes.
 - b. When these parts being disassembled Be careful to prevent high-pressure gas and debris sprayed into the eyes and the skin, causing significant damage.
 - c. Slowly release the pressure, when the gauge is displayed as "0", then disassemble.
 - D. Oils/Grease
 - a. You can not mix different types of oils.
 - b. Changes in composition can cause performance degradation.
 - c. When using a clean grease, be careful not to mix impurities and moisture.





Mechanical Overview





This section shows an overview of the Servo Straightener Units.





Adjusting Feed height Adjustment

In order to corresponding to the height of the stamping devices, you have to adjust the feeding height of the straightener feeder.

Following diagram shows how to adjust the feed height

- 1. Unlock the three bolts on both front and back sides of the straightener feeder before adjusting
- 2. Press the feeding line height button on the touch panel to adjust the height casually.
- 3. Fasten the locking bolt and screws after adjustments .



FIGURE 2 - PASSLINE ADJUSTMENT DISPLAY

Azimuth Machinery – Instruction Manual SF unit REV202004





Guiding rolls

The guiding rolls are guide in the entrance of the servo Straightener-Feeder unit. Both rolls operate separately in order to achieve the alignment of the material to the tool & die.

Separate the rolls in manual model

Rotate the hand wheel to adjust the distance between two guiding wheels to corresponding coil width

The materials should pass through the center of the mold and should be parallel with the roll feeder .



FIGURE 3- ENTRANCE ROLLS GUIDE





Straightener Adjustment

This section covers the straightener adjustment & how to properly adjust the straightener based on your material. The coil strip will be straightened after passing the straightening rolls.

The straightening value is what we refer to the running angle of straightening rolls to which is related to the straightening effect.

The straightener is adjusted by two CAMS controlled by the handwheel shown below.



FIGURE 4 - STRAIGHTENER ADJUSTMENT

13 Azimuth Machinery – Instruction Manual SF unit REV202004







FIGURE 5 - STRAIGHTENER ADJUSTEMENT2

During adjustment, operate the Servo feed motor in manual mode to rotate forward and reverse, and adjust repeatedly until the correction effect is satisfactory.

Please note that repeating the process of straightening might be necessary due to different material. Do not repeat the process more than 5 times with the same material length as the mechanical properties of material might change.





The picture below represents the actual configuration of the straightener rolls.

The entrance handwheel should tilt the upper rolls 4-5-6-7 while **the exit handwheel** should incline & adjust parallelism of the all 4 rolls.

When both handwheel at same value (for example, +2mm), the distance between the upper rolls & lower rolls should be near 2mm.



FIGURE 6 - STRAIGHTENER ROLLS CONFIGURATION



FIGURE 7 STRAIGHTENER ROLLS - NEGATIVE ENTRANCE WHEEL





Percentage of penetration

The percentage of penetration will vary based on these actual parameters :

- 1. Coil Diameter
- 2. Material
- 3. Loop between Decoiler & straightening unit

The reference percentage of penetration can be calculated by the table below

Always start with a 15% of penetration on the entrance rolls. For example :

Thickness	.060"
Entrance value	010"
Exit value	.060"

Slightly increase the entrance value if you are not having a proper result.

The exit value shouldn't be less than the actual material thickness.





Machine Capacity

The machine straightening capacity is for reference only. Please always refer to the servo torque value when operating the machine. The chart below shows the actual machine maximum thickness based on width of material.



FIGURE 8 - STRAIGHTENER CAPABILITIES

Azimuth Machinery – Instruction





THICKNESS (INCH)	AZ SF2-400	AZ SF2-600	AZ-SF2-800	AZ-SF2-1000
0,011811024	15,75	23,5	31,5	39,25
0,039370079	15,75	23,5	31,5	39,25
0,047244094	15,75	23,5	31,5	35,5
0,05511811	15,75	23,5	31,5	33,5
0,062992126	15,75	23,5	27,5	31,5
0,070866142	15,75	19,75	23,5	27,5
0,078740157	15,75	17,75	19,75	23,5
0,090551181	15,75	17	18	21,75
0,11023622	14,5	15,75	17	19,75
0,125984252	11,75	13,75	15,75	17,75
0,177165354	6,25	7	7,75	15,75

FIGURE 9 – SF2 STRAIGHTENER CAPABILITIES 2

Azimuth Machinery – Instruction





Feeder Adjustment

This section covers the basics adjustment of servo feeder. The feeding rolls are at the very end of the structure. The pressure regulator at the front adjust the pressure of the feeding rolls.



FIGURE 10 - FEEDING ROLLS ADJUSTMENT

Pull out the adjustment knob (until the orange sign out), and then turn the adjustment knob to adjust the pressure of the discharge roller.

Twist clockwise, the pressure of the roller will be strengthened, twist counter clockwise, the roller The pressure will be reduced.

Push the button and fasten it until the orange sign hides after finishing adjustment.

If the material slips during feeding, it is probably due to weak pressure. On the other hand, overpressure may cause abrasion on the material or twisting of the material.





Adjusting the PLS outputs (Feed, reset cam & Pilot Release)

In order to synchronize the feeder with the stamping press properly, you need to adjust the cam switch of the stamping press to control the feeding and the automatic release.

Operating the press in "INCH MODE" of the stamping press to setting the cam switch.

For the stamping equipment using electronic cams, please set contact closure to "ON" and contact opening to "OFF". Due to different electrical circuits, sometimes "ON/OFF" setting is opposite.

Feed signal

The feed start signal is set by the cam switch when the stamping equipment leaves the bottom dead center. Find the perfect timing between the opening of the tool & die.

Verify the angle value & add an hypothetical 10 degrees to this value. This value means that the feeder will start advancing material once receiving the signal. **(IE : This value should be between 180 & 360 degrees). You could always start with an hypothetical value of 270 degrees to your feed signal).**

<u>Please note that the feed signal must be ON during the entire feeding sequence. If not. a</u> <u>"feed sequence" fault will occur.</u>





Optimizing your feed signal

Below is an example of feed signal calculation :

Let's say you want to run your press $A = \pi r^2$ at 60 SPM. For some reason, you want to complete your feed sequence before 40 degrees because the stopping time of your press is long.

You input an hypothetical value of 270 degrees as your feed signal ON

Your part length is 6".

Feed signal on	270
Feed signal OFF	40
DWELL	360-270+40= 130 degrees
Press speed	60 stroke per minutes
Press speed in degrees per seconds	60*360/60= 360 degrees per seconds
Part length	6"
Feeder max speed	20" per seconds

FIGURE 11 - SCENARIO OF FEEDING CALCULATION

With the inputs above, you can determine if your scenario is achievable.

Feed time

LENGTH / FEEDER SPEED = 6''/20''/seconds = 0.300 SECONDS.

Press timing between feed

DWELL /Press speed in degrees per seconds=130/360=.361seconds

Feeder capacity

Feedtime/presstiming=.3/.361=83%

Since we are under the feeder capactiy, this means this scenario is viable. In the scenario above, we are not taking ACCELERATION & DECELERATION in consideration.

21

Azimuth Machinery – Instruction Manual SF unit REV202004





Reset CAM

The reset CAM is a signal telling the feed that the press made a complete rotation. The reset CAM prevents a ''double signal'' & prevents double feed.

The reset CAM should always be BEFORE the PILOT RELEASE signal, if needed.





The pilot release is a signal that make the feeder release the pressure from the rolls. In order to achieve a proper release follow these steps :

- 1. Find & locate the pilots inside the tool & die.
- 2. Operate the press in " INCH" mode & make sure that the feeder is set to manual mode
- 3. Jog the press until you reach the entrance of the pilot pins.
- 4. Once you find the proper positioning, take the pilot angle in memory.
- 5. Input those value in your press control, -10 degrees as the OPEN ANGLE.
- 6. Closing angle should be at bottom dead center, which is 180 degrees.





Control Overview

This sections cover the control overview of the straightener-feeder unit.

Main Screen

SOFT_NA		– 🗆 X
English (United States)		
AZIMUTH		Thursday, May 25, 2023 4:06:21 PM
Front Adj. Back Adj.	Active Recipe :	Active Recipe:
00		Distance
Current Position :	Machine State	Smood
0 (mm) 0		0 in/s
Deviation from recipe :		Acceleration
0 (%) 0		0 in/s ²
		Deceleration
Set Front Adi. Pos		0 in/s ²
Set Back Adj. Pos		Bypass Pilot Release
	Feeder Torque 0 %	
Transfer Adj.		
Setpoints	Auto Manual	
	· · · ·	

FIGURE 12 - MAIN SCREEN

You can always access the main screen by pressing on the Azimuth logo in the top left corner of the navigation bar.

The setpoints and deviation of the encoders for the straightner is found on the left. The current position is the measure of where the rolls are right now, the deviation from the recipe is how far the current value is from the one set in the recipes. You can set, temporarily, the setpoints of the front and back adjustment positions. For this to become permenant they must be transferred to the recipe using the transfer button below.

By selecting Auto or Manual you can toggle how the feeder is operated. In Auto mode the press is responsible for operating the feeder through the <u>different signals</u>. In Manual mode the straightner is operated manually through the screen and push buttons.





Machine state will show messages about what the machine is doing at the very moment, and will also show the torque for the last move the feeder has performed. This can be very useful when debugging.

The active recipe title and its values will display the values the feeder is currently using.





Manual Mode

SOFT_NA			– 🗆 X
🖽 🖸 English (United States)			
AZIMUTH	RECIPES LOG IN		Thursday, May 25 2023 4:12:21 PM
	Manua	al Settings	
Micro Distance:	Acceleration:	Passline	Arm
0 in	0 in/s ²		
Speed: 0 in/s	Deceleration: 0 in/s ²	Up Dowr	n Open Close
Record	ing		
Current Distance:	Recipe Feed Distance	Up Limit Down Limi	it Fully Open Fully Closed
	Transfer To		
Begin Recording Finish Rec	ording Recipe		
Micro Forward J	og Auto	Manual	Reverse Jog Single Feed
	\odot	• •	

FIGURE 13- MANUAL MODE SCREEN

There are four important settings to operate the feeder manually :

- 1. *Micro Distance* : Length to feed when operating in micro mode.
- 2. *Speed* : Velocity of the advance of material
- 3. *Acceleration* : How quickly the feeder will reach its set speed. Note that if set too low the feeder may never reach its intended speed. The higher this setting is, the faster the straightner reaches its velocity but too fast and the rolls risk slipping and thereby losing precision.
- 4. *Deceleration* : How quickly the feeder goes from its set speed back to a standstill. As with acceleration, if decelerating too quickly the material may slip from the rolls.





Instead of presetting a length to feed, it's possible to record the length advanced manually with the jog forward and reverse buttons. When you begin recording the feeder "zeros" on the current position and records all variations until demanded by the operator to finish recording, at which point it's possible to send the recording length to the current recipe.

The passline, which is the height of feeder, can be adjusted up or down until the limits are reached (represented by the two luminous indicators).

The positioning arm can be moved towards or away from the entry roll using the controls on the screen. The luminous indicators on the screen show if the positioning arm is fully closed, or if it has reached the limit of its open position.

The feeder can be operated manually either in jog or in micro mode. Micro performs a feed of a preset length determined by the Micro Distance setting. Jog will move the feeder forward or reverse for as long as the controls are activated, either via a physical button or via the HMI. To enter Micro mode simply press the button and notice that the background color of the button has changed to indicate that micro is active.

A single feed can be performed by pressing and maintaining the single feed button, note that this feed *uses the values in the current loaded recipe*.





Bringing material to the tool & die

This section cover the procedure to bring material to the tool & die properly.

- 1. Open the entrance & exit straightener adjustment. Make sure to remember the actual adjustment of your straightener unit.
- 2. Open the Entry ARM to leave room for material to be properly "pinched".
- 3. Manually advanced material until you reach the servo feed rolls.
- 4. Readjust the straightener value



FIGURE 14- HOW TO PASS MATERIAL THROUGHT SF UNIT





Recipes

SOFT_NA						– 🗆 X
English (United States)						
AZIMUTH	RECIPES	LOG IN	LOG OUT			Thursday, May 25, 2023 4:11:47 PM
Recettes	Title	Value			ctive Reci	ne [.]
Test Alex	Title	Azim	uth Test	Title	enve neer	pe.
Azimuth_Test	Distance	1.25		Distance	0	in
	Speed	10		Speed	0	in/s
	Acceleration	n 3000)	Acceleration	0	in/s²
	Deceleration	n 3000)	Deceleration	0	in/s²
	Torque_Max	α 200 Γ-Ι		Torque maxima	ale O	%
	Metric Bypass Polo	Faise	1	Enc1 Position S	et O	
	Enc1 Setpoi	int 0		Enc2 Position S	iet O	
	Enc2_Setpoi	int 0		Bypass Pile	ot Release	
				Metric		
Add Recipe Delete se recip	elected Tra	nsfer to ntroller	Save	Save As	Transf Setp	fer Adj. points
	\odot	\odot)	\odot		

FIGURE 15 - RECIPE SCREEN

Recipes are a set of variables recorded that you can recall and make active whenever required.

There is a list of recipes, when selected in the list, the values of the recipe will be displayed on the screen. Note that those values <u>will not become active</u> until the recipe is transferred to the controller.

The currently active recipe and its values are shown, it is read only and cannot be modified therefrom.

Various actions can be performed on the saved recipes. A new recipe can added, an existing one can be deleted or transferred to the controller (*note : transferring to controller will not remove the recipe, but rather make it active so that its values are used*). If any modifications are made then the recipe can be saved, note that recipes <u>**must be saved**</u> in order for them to retain their values when the machine is powered down. Any new modifications to be can

29 Azimuth Machinery – Instruction Manual SF unit REV202004





be made under a new name by saving the recipe as a new one. The current adjustment setpoints of the

Straightener, can be transferred in the currently selected recipe, thereby saving the current location of the straightening system.

Components of a recipe

Title: The name of the recipe.

Distance: The distance the feeder will advance. This is in metric, if metric below is selected.

Speed: This is the speed at which the feeder will move.

Acceleration: How quickly the feeder will reach its speed. Increasing it makes the feeder accelerate faster.

Deceleration: How quickly the feeder will stop. Increasing this value makes the feeder decelerate faster.

Max Torque: Represents the force in that the motor is allowed before giving an alarm. Note that there is also <u>a max torque in the maintenance menu</u> that applies when not in auto mode.

Metric: Check when you want the recipe to be in metric. Note that this only applies to the recipe, *to change the overall unit* you need to go to the maintenance menu. Be warned that checking metric will not automatically convert the distance; this needs to be done manually.

Bypass release sequence: Bypasses the release part of the sequence, allowing the feeder to operate without releasing the pilot.

Enc1 and Enc2 position set: Position setting of the encoders on the straightening system, this is the raw value stored in the recipe.





SOFT_NA	s) 🔽					- 🗆 X
AZIMUTH		RECIPES	LOG IN	LOG OUT		Friday, June 2, 2023 9:19:11 AM
Time V Messaç	16					
	Trauklashoa	tin a	Res	et		
	Iroubleshoo	oting				
		\odot	$\overline{\cdots}$		$\overline{.}$	

FIGURE 17 - ALARM SCREEN

Alarms

The alarms screen will display alarms and allow you to reset them. Note that if the <u>press</u> <u>gives out a fault signal</u>, then the press controller will need to be reset before the alarm on the feeder. The troubleshooting screen is strictly for advanced fault-finding with the PLC, HMI or Servo Drive.

FIGURE 16- ALARMS SCREEN

31

Azimuth Machinery – Instruction Manual SF unit REV202004





Troublehsoothing

Alarm	Possible Problem	Solution
Sequence Error	The feeder received a feed signal while waiting for a reset or release signal.	Make sure the controller's output are properly configured and that all wiring is properly connected.
Feed Signal Lost	The feed signal was lost during feeding.	Make sure the cam angle settings for the feed are properly set on the press controller, or increase the speed of the feeder. Make sure that all wiring is properly connected.
Max Torque	The maximum torque set in maintenance (if in Manual) or in the recipe (if in Auto) has been reached.	Inspect the mechanics of the feeder and die to make sure nothing is blocking it from operating properly. Make sure the proper material is selected. The max torque value is set too low or the machine is forcing more than it should – set it higher. Make sure a recipe is selected upon start-up.
Pilot Manual	The pilot release is manually activated.	Turn the selector on the side of the feeder to the proper position
Press Fault	The press controller is giving an error.	Clear the fault with the press controller. Make sure everything is properly wired.
Safety Activated	A safety has been activated.	Check all E-Stops and doors. Verify proper wiring.
Servo Drive Error	An error with the servo drive has occurred.	Press reset and if the error comes back then lookup the error code on the drive inside of the panel and take appropriate measures.

FIGURE 18 - TROUBLESHOOTING TABLE





Feeder Signals & Press Communication

Communication between the press and the feeder is done through five different signals. Four are sent from the press to the feeder, and one is sent from the feeder to the press.

The tables below explain the different signals that are exchanged between the feeder and the press.

SIGNALS FROM THE PRESS TO THE FEEDER

Feed	Initial signal that triggers a feed cycle from the feeder. The signal must be maintained while the feeder is feeding.
Reset cam	After a feed signal, the press must send a reset signal before the feeder can repeat.
Release	Releases the pressure on the material by operating a solenoid-controlled valve. This part of the sequence <u>can be bypassed</u> .
Error	A fault condition has occurred in the press and therefore the feeder must stop. <u>Please visit section</u> <u>3.4 for more detail.</u>

SIGNALS FROM THE FEEDER TO THE PRESS.

Error	A fault condition has occurred in the feeder
	and therefore the press must stop. <u>Please visit</u>
	section 3.4 for more detail.





Maintenance Settings



FIGURE 19 - MAINTENANCE SCREEN

The overall unit type of the feeder can be changed to metric. Please note this <u>only applies to</u> <u>manual mode</u>, recipe units are set individually for each recipe.

An adjustment factor can be set in order to compensate for constant feeding length deviations. Please note that this *factor does not apply* to recording lengths with the manual function. The factor can be calculated automatically by entering the value demanded, the one entered on the screen, and the real value physically measured from the piece fed through.

The feeder keeps <u>some statistics</u> on its usage. The maximum jog distance allowed prevents the feeder from accidentally feeding too long of a distance in case of an electrical control issue. The pilot release delay is a timer that controls how long the pilot is supposed to take in order to physically move to its closed position. It helps prevent the feeder from feeding

34 Azimuth Machinery – Instruction Manual SF unit REV202004





while the rolls are still partially opened. The overall max torque is the value taken into account when not operating in auto mode – otherwise the value from the recipe is used.

The encoder on the front and back straightening rolls can be recalibrated, which is not something that should ever be necessary unless the encoders must be changed, please contact us before doing so. The permissible deviation from the recipe setpoint on the encoders can also be modified, which is how far from the setpoint to go before triggering an alarm.





ANNEXE 1 ASSEMBLY DRAWING





W	
approve	
Version	А



	appro	ve
	Versi	on A
	Sec ma	tion ap A
	Serial	Frame body/number/name
	1	Motor 0.75kW,Aluminum alloy worm reducer 1HP 60 ratio Model 70
	2	023-00-21010 Reducer sprocket
	3	023-00-21009 Motor fixed seat (2)
	4	023-00-21002-10 Motor tight board
	5	023-00-21004 Screw <4>
	6	023-00-21006 Lift nut <4>
	7	023-00-21007 Lift link wheel (1) <4>
	8	$023-00-21019$ Sprocket cushion circle $\langle 4 \rangle$
	9	Thrust hall hearings 51107 (5)
	10	023-00-21011 Tight chain wheel
	12	GB894. 2-86 Elastic block B type B type B 20
	13	Deep groove ball bearings 6904-2Z
	14	023-00-21013 Tight shaft
	15	023-00-21012 Tight
	16	023-06-21001 Header
	17	023-00-21008 Link splin wheel (2)
	18	023-00-21002-10 Motor tight board
	20	023-00-52012 Rear cover
	21	003-00-21015 Motor band
	22	GB / T1096-1979 Ordinary flat key A 10 $ imes$ 90
	23	023-00-21002-09 Servo motor plate
	24	NR-WI-023-06-21002-A0 Straightener shelf
-	25	SGMGV-55ADC61 SCS2-140-B1
	26	SCS2 140 D1 SCS_1N_CR_140R_200_D0_D_VP1
	21	023-00-21014-11 Cas tank
	29	023-00-21021-A1 Gas storage tank support board
	30	023-06-21001-03-A1 Backhill
	31	023-00-21001-04-A1 Fixed seat of the front plate
	32	023-00-21003 L-square plate
	33	023-06-21001-02-A1 Front Plate
	34 35	023-06-52001 Front seal plate

Azimuth Machinery Straighte	ner upper part asser	nbl	y explosion view		
Presses & Automation Number of pages 13 pages, pa	ge 13 prepared by		Review	approv	
	I Defating box			101310	A
Cover component					
		Serial	Promo hody shall (number (nomo	Serial	
		number 1	022-00-52010-07 Poor block	number 11	
		1	023 00-32010-07 Real DIUCK	11	023-00-42010-A1 transparent no
		ے ع	003-06-52010-04 Top cover	12	023-00-42001-A1 Operation boy bracket
		4	003-06-52010-06 Rack plato	14	023-00-42002 Operating box connecting board
		5	003-00-52010-03 Front cover	15	023-00-42005 Brackot shaft
		л Б	023-00-62001 Acrylic board	10	023-00-42000 DidLKEt Slidit
	I –	7	023-00-52010-05 lipper and lower cover lock block	17	023 00-42000 DIACKET CUSHION
		1	000 00 50010 01 Presstant 1	10	023-00-42003 Uperating box holder
		8	003-00-52010-01 Front and lower	18	023-00-42008-01 Operating nandle box (1)
		y 10	023-00-52010-08 Front block	19	Control handle (2) KGNW-313Y
	-	10	UZ3-UU-62UU2 SCAIE WINDOW	20	023-00-42007C Operating panel
				21	US21U(=WIDD
				22	HINGE HHPSNC5-U2, NINGE HHPSNC5-
	-			23	01023-00-42009-A1 Hinge pad
				24	CONTROL NANCIE (1) KGNW212Y
	-			25	023-00-42006-02 Operating handle box (2)
	-				
	1				1



approve Version	
VerSLON	А
Serial Left&right Turbin number	e, supporting components/number/name
1 GB / T1096-1979	Ordinary flat key A type 6 \times 20
2 Two-wheel s	spoke handle vRTP. 250A-20
3 003-00-27005	-1 Signing signs on the left
4 003-00-27004-1	Betal fixed signs on the left
5 003-00-2700	6-1 Loft Turbino
6 023-00-2700	
	9 French disk A
7 Type 1 hex	9 French disk A agonal nut C -Class M20
7 Type 1 hex 8 023-00-2700	9 French disk A agonal nut C -Class M20 3 washer
7 Type 1 hex 8 023-00-2700 9 40-2.75Dish	9 French disk A agonal nut C -Class M20 3 washer spring
7 Type 1 hex. 8 023-00-2700 9 40-2.75Dish 10 003-00-2701	9 French disk A agonal nut C -Class M20 3 washer spring 2 Turbine 30×3
7 Type 1 hex. 8 023-00-2700 9 40-2.75Dish 10 003-00-2701 11 003-00-27014	9 French disk A agonal nut C -Class M20 3 washer spring 2 Turbine 30×3 Furbine cushion circle 1
7 Type 1 hex. 8 023-00-2700 9 40-2.75Dish 10 003-00-2701 11 003-00-27014 12 023-00-2701	9 French disk A agonal nut C -Class M20 3 washer spring 2 Turbine 30×3 Furbine cushion circle 1 1 Turbine rod 1 × 30
7 Type 1 hex. 8 023-00-2700 9 40-2.75Dish 10 003-00-2701 11 003-00-2701 12 023-00-2701 13 Thrust ball	9 French disk A agonal nut C -Class M20 3 washer spring 2 Turbine 30×3 Furbine cushion circle 1 1 Turbine rod 1 × 30 bearings 51104
7 Type 1 hex. 8 023-00-2700 9 40-2.75Dish 10 003-00-2701 11 003-00-27014 12 023-00-2701 13 Thrust ball 14 023-00-27001-2	9 French disk A aqonal nut C -Class M20 3 washer spring 2 Turbine 30×3 Furbine cushion circle 1 1 Turbine rod 1 × 30 bearings 51104 2 Right rotten diagonal gear 1
7 Type 1 hex. 8 023-00-2700 9 40-2.75Dish 10 003-00-2701 11 003-00-27014 12 023-00-27014 13 Thrust ball 14 023-00-27001-2 15 023-00-2700	9 French disk A agonal nut C -Class M20 3 washer spring 2 Turbine 30×3 Furbine cushion circle 1 1 Turbine rod 1 × 30 bearings 51104 2 Right rotten diagonal gear 1 8 Manipulating axle
7 Type 1 hex. 8 023-00-2700 9 40-2.75Dish 10 003-00-2701 11 003-00-2701 12 023-00-2701 13 Thrust ball 14 023-00-2700 15 023-00-2700 16 Thrust ball	9 French disk A agonal nut C -Class M20 3 washer spring 2 Turbine 30×3 Furbine cushion circle 1 1 Turbine rod 1 × 30 bearings 51104 2 Right rotten diagonal gear 1 8 Manipulating axle bearings 51104
7 Type 1 hex. 8 023-00-2700 9 40-2.75Dish 10 003-00-2701 11 003-00-27014 12 023-00-27014 13 Thrust ball 14 023-00-27001-2 15 023-00-27000 16 Thrust ball 17 023-00-27002-2	9 French disk A agonal nut C -Class M20 3 washer spring 2 Turbine 30×3 Furbine cushion circle 1 1 Turbine rod 1 × 30 bearings 51104 2 Right rotten diagonal gear 1 8 Manipulating axle bearings 51104 2 Right -rotation diagonal gear 2
7 Type 1 hex. 8 023-00-2700 9 40-2.75Dish 10 003-00-2701 11 003-00-27014 12 023-00-2701 13 Thrust ball 14 023-00-27001-2 15 023-00-27000 16 Thrust ball 17 023-00-27002-2 18 Thrust ball	9 French disk A agonal nut C -Class M20 3 washer spring 2 Turbine 30×3 Furbine cushion circle 1 1 Turbine rod 1 × 30 bearings 51104 2 Right rotten diagonal gear 1 8 Manipulating axle bearings 51104 2 Right -rotation diagonal gear 2 bearings 51104
7 Type 1 hex. 8 023-00-2700 9 40-2.75Dish 10 003-00-2701 11 003-00-27014 12 023-00-27014 13 Thrust ball 14 023-00-27001-2 15 023-00-27000 16 Thrust ball 17 023-00-27002-2 18 Thrust ball 19 SF-1X Bearin	9 French disk A aqonal nut C -Class M20 3 washer spring 2 Turbine 30×3 Furbine cushion circle 1 1 Turbine rod 1 × 30 bearings 51104 2 Right rotten diagonal gear 1 8 Manipulating axle bearings 51104 2 Right -rotation diagonal gear 2 bearings 51104 1 diagonal gear 2 1 diagonal gear 2 1 diagonal gear 2 1 diagonal gear 2 1 diagonal gear 3 1 diagonal gear 2 1 diagonal gear 4 1 diagonal gear 4 1 diagonal gear 5 1 diagonal gear 6 1 diagonal gear 6 1 diagonal gear 6 1 diagonal gear 7 1 diagonal gear 7
7 Type 1 hex. 8 023-00-2700 9 40-2.75Dish 10 003-00-2701 11 003-00-27014 12 023-00-27014 13 Thrust ball 14 023-00-27001-2 15 023-00-27002-2 16 Thrust ball 17 023-00-27002-2 18 Thrust ball 19 SF-1X Bearin 20 003-00-27013	9 French disk A agonal nut C -Class M20 3 washer spring 2 Turbine 30×3 Furbine cushion circle 1 1 Turbine rod 1 × 30 bearings 51104 2 Right rotten diagonal gear 1 8 Manipulating axle bearings 51104 2 Right -rotation diagonal gear 2 bearings 51104 3 Manipulating axle 3 Manip
7 Type 1 hex. 8 023-00-2700 9 40-2.75Dish 10 003-00-2701 11 003-00-27014 12 023-00-2701 13 Thrust ball 14 023-00-27001-2 15 023-00-27000 16 Thrust ball 17 023-00-27002-2 18 Thrust ball 19 SF-1X Bearin 20 003-00-27013 21 SF-1X Bearin	9 French disk A agonal nut C -Class M20 3 washer spring 2 Turbine 30×3 Furbine cushion circle 1 1 Turbine rod 1 × 30 bearings 51104 2 Right rotten diagonal gear 1 8 Manipulating axle bearings 51104 2 Right -rotation diagonal gear 2 bearings 51104 1 Guerrings 51104 1 Guerrings 51104 2 Right -rotation diagonal gear 2 1 Dearings 51104 1 Guerrings 51104 1 Gu
7 Type 1 hex. 8 023-00-2700 9 40-2.75Dish 10 003-00-2701 11 003-00-27014 12 023-00-27014 13 Thrust ball 14 023-00-27001-2 15 023-00-27002-2 16 Thrust ball 17 023-00-27002-2 18 Thrust ball 19 SF-1X Bearin 20 003-00-27013 21 SF-1X Bearin 22 023-00-2701	9 French disk A agonal nut C -Class M20 3 washer spring 2 Turbine 30×3 Furbine cushion circle 1 1 Turbine rod 1 × 30 bearings 51104 2 Right rotten diagonal gear 1 8 Manipulating axle bearings 51104 2 Right -rotation diagonal gear 2 bearings 51104 1 Guerrings 51104
7 Type 1 hex. 8 023-00-2700 9 40-2.75Dish 10 003-00-2701 11 003-00-27014 12 023-00-27014 13 Thrust ball 14 023-00-27001-2 15 023-00-27002-2 16 Thrust ball 17 023-00-27002-2 18 Thrust ball 19 SF-1X Bearin 20 003-00-27013 21 SF-1X Bearin 22 023-00-2700 23 003-00-2700	9 French disk A agonal nut C -Class M20 3 washer spring 2 Turbine 30×3 Furbine cushion circle 1 1 Turbine rod 1 × 30 bearings 51104 2 Right rotten diagonal gear 1 8 Manipulating axle bearings 51104 2 Right -rotation diagonal gear 2 bearings 51104 2 Right -rotation diagonal gear 2 bearings 51104 1 (202312) Furbine transmission shaft ng (202312) 0 French disk B 6-2 Right Turbine 5 02 Right hook current
7 Type 1 hex. 8 023-00-2700 9 40-2.75Dish 10 003-00-2701 11 003-00-27014 12 023-00-27014 13 Thrust ball 14 023-00-27001-2 15 023-00-27000 16 Thrust ball 17 023-00-27002-2 18 Thrust ball 19 SF-1X Bearin 20 003-00-27013 21 SF-1X Bearin 22 023-00-2700 23 003-00-2701 23 003-00-2700 24 003-00-2700	9 French disk A agonal nut C -Class M20 3 washer spring 2 Turbine 30×3 Furbine cushion circle 1 1 Turbine rod 1 × 30 bearings 51104 2 Right rotten diagonal gear 1 8 Manipulating axle bearings 51104 2 Right -rotation diagonal gear 2 bearings 51104 2 Right -rotation diagonal gear 2 bearings 51104 1 G (202312) 5 Jurbine transmission shaft ng (202312) 0 French disk B 6-2 Right Turbine 5-02 Right back support 0 V55V35)
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	9 French disk A agonal nut C -Class M20 3 washer spring 2 Turbine 30×3 Furbine cushion circle 1 1 Turbine rod 1 × 30 bearings 51104 2 Right rotten diagonal gear 1 8 Manipulating axle bearings 51104 2 Right -rotation diagonal gear 2 bearings 51104 2 Right -rotation diagonal gear 2 bearings 51104 1 Guerral (202312) 5 Funch disk B 6-2 Right Turbine 5-02 Right back support 0 X55X35) 5-01 Right front support
7 Type 1 hex. 8 023-00-2700 9 40-2.75Dish 10 003-00-2701 11 003-00-27014 12 023-00-27014 12 023-00-27014 13 Thrust ball 14 023-00-27000 16 Thrust ball 17 023-00-27002-2 18 Thrust ball 19 SF-1X Bearin 20 003-00-27013 21 SF-1X Bearin 22 023-00-2700 24 003-00-2700 25 FB090 (70X6 26 003-00-2402 25 FB090 (70X6 26 003-00-2402	9 French disk A agonal nut C -Class M20 3 washer spring 2 Turbine 30×3 Furbine cushion circle 1 1 Turbine rod 1 × 30 bearings 51104 2 Right rotten diagonal gear 1 8 Manipulating axle bearings 51104 2 Right -rotation diagonal gear 2 bearings 51104 2 Right -rotation diagonal gear 2 bearings 51104 1 Guession shaft ng (202312) 0 French disk B 6-2 Right Turbine 5-02 Right front support 6-02 Loft back support
7 Type 1 hex. 8 $023-00-2700$ 9 $40-2$. 75Dish 10 $003-00-2701$ 11 $003-00-27014$ 12 $023-00-27014$ 12 $023-00-27014$ 13 Thrust ball 14 $023-00-27000$ 16 Thrust ball 17 $023-00-27002-22$ 18 Thrust ball 19 SF-1X Bearin 20 $003-00-27013$ 21 SF-1X Bearin 22 $023-00-27000$ 24 $003-00-27000$ 24 $003-00-24002$ 25 FB090 (70X6) 26 $003-00-24002$ 27 $003-00-2401$ 28 $002-00-2401$	9 French disk A agonal nut C -Class M20 3 washer spring 2 Turbine 30×3 Furbine cushion circle 1 1 Turbine rod 1 × 30 bearings 51104 2 Right rotten diagonal gear 1 8 Manipulating axle bearings 51104 2 Right -rotation diagonal gear 2 bearings 51104 2 Right -rotation diagonal gear 2 bearings 51104 1 G (202312) 5 Jurbine transmission shaft ng (202312) 0 French disk B 6-2 Right Turbine 5-02 Right back support 0 X55X35) 5-01 Right front support 6-01 Left front support
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	9 French disk A agonal nut C -Class M20 3 washer spring 2 Turbine 30×3 Furbine cushion circle 1 1 Turbine rod 1 × 30 bearings 51104 2 Right rotten diagonal gear 1 8 Manipulating axle bearings 51104 2 Right -rotation diagonal gear 2 bearings 51104 2 Right -rotation diagonal gear 2 bearings 51104 1 Guerrings 51104 2 Right -rotation diagonal gear 2 1 Dearings 51104 1 Guerrings 51104 1 Guerrings 51104 1 Guerrings 51104 1 Guerrings 51104 2 Right -rotation diagonal gear 2 1 Dearings 51104 2 Right -rotation diagonal gear 1 2 Dearings 51104 2 Right -rotation diagonal gear 2 1 Dearings 51104 2 Right -rotation diagonal gear 2 2 Dearings 51104 2 Right -rotation diago
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	9 French disk A agonal nut C -Class M20 3 washer spring 2 Turbine 30×3 Furbine cushion circle 1 1 Turbine rod 1 × 30 bearings 51104 2 Right rotten diagonal gear 1 8 Manipulating axle bearings 51104 2 Right -rotation diagonal gear 2 bearings 51104 2 Right -rotation diagonal gear 2 bearings 51104 1 Curbine transmission shaft ng (202312) 1 Urbine transmission shaft ng (202312) 0 French disk B 6-2 Right Turbine 5-02 Right back support 0X55X35) 5-01 Right front support 6-01 Left front support



approve	
Version	А

Serial number	Straightener head component/number/name
1	023-06-24037 Cover fixed board
2	023-00-24035 Cover pillar
3	003-00-24026 Right adjuster bottom plate
4	003-00-24017 Left adjustment bottom plate
5	VFS5110-5DB
6	VFS3110-5DZB
7	023-00-23049 Cover support rod
8	
9	
10	
11	
12	
13	



number	
1	023-00-26006 Auxiliary small roller
2	023-00-26004 Auxiliary roller
3	023-00-26003 Auxiliary shaft <5>
4	NA6932<23>
5	SF-1WC Pad (32x54x1.5)
6	023-00-26007 Upper plate
7	023-00-26005 An auxiliary board
8	Deep groove ball bearings6206-2Z
9	003-06-24001 Upper flat roller
10	GB893. 2-86Elastic block B type 55 with holes 55
11	Deep groove ball bearings6006-2Z
12	003-06-24015 Directional eccentric axis
13	003-06-24002 Straightener Direction roller
14	003-00-24006 Cylinder
15	Jdb edge inlaid set bearings (36X45X35)
16	003-00-24012 Connecting seat
17	NA4916
18	JF-800Bearing (758040)
19	FB-090Bearing (707530)
20	003-00-24003 Right installation plate
21	Roller bearingsNA4911
22	SF-1XBearing (222515)
23	Roller bearingsNA4911
24	003-00-24004 Left installation plate
25	FB-090Bearing (707530)
26	SF-1XBearing (222515)
27	
28	
29	
30	



6	approve		
V	/ersion	А	
13 c axi	S		
	Serial	Upper straightener sub -components/number/name	
	1	SCS2-TC-140B-75	
	2	003-06-24005 Upper panel	
	3	003-06-24011 Outlet eccentric ax	is
	4	003-00-24036 Washer (2)	
	5	003-00-24048 Horizontal positioni	ng
	6	003-00-24029 Lock -up seat	
	7	Outlet ruler	
	8	003-00-24030 Eccentric axis was	her
	9	003-00-24031 Washer (1)	
	10	003-06-24013 Inlet eccentric axis	5
	11	003-00-24014 Upen eccentric axis	
	14	UUD UU 24032 ELLEITITIC TUCKE	S
	13	003-00-24033 Rocker lock ring	S
	13 14	003-00-24033 Rocker lock ring 023-00-24046 Straightener cylinder conne	s
	13 14 15	003-00-24033 Rocker lock ring 023-00-24046 Straightener cylinder conne	s



	annro	Ve	
	Versi	on	А
		Feed com	ling cylinder bracket ponent
F	Sorial	1	
ŀ	number	Lower stra	ightener sub component/number/name
⊢	1	Deep gr	oove ball bearings 6206-2z
ŀ	2	023-00-2	23039 Feed gear
┝	3	GB / T1096	-1979 Ordinary flat key A 10 $ imes$ 361
F	4	023-06-2303	8 front guide press axis
F	5	Deep gr	oove ball bearings 6206-2z
⊢	6	023-06-2	3003 Lower straightening Roller
ŀ	7	Deep gr	oove ball bearings 6209-2z
⊢	8	023-06-2	23001 Main feedingroller
⊢	9	023-00-2	3009 Intermediate big gear
⊢	10	GB893. 2-8	6Elastic block B type 35 with holes 35
⊢	11	veep gr	oove ball bearings 6207-nk
⊢	12	023-00-	23012 Intermediate gear shaft
F	13	023-00-2303	1 Feeding air cylinder bracket (diameter 100)
ŀ	14	JDB Flanç	ging copper sleeve (35X45X35)
F	15	023-00-2	3013 Intermediate gear shaft
┝	16	SF-1WC I	Yad (32x54x1.5)
┝	17	Roller b	earings TAF304030
ŀ	10	023 - 00 - 2	23008 Intermediate gear
┝	19	чвх94. 2-	BOD ELASTIC DIOCK B TYPE B -shaft 30
┝	20	023-00-2	26004 Auxiliary roller
┝	21	023-00-2	26003 Auxiliary shaft
┝	22	NA6932	
┝	23	SF-1WC I	Pad (32x54x1.5)
┝	24	023-00-2	26002 Lower side plate
⊦	25	023-00-2	26001 Down auxiliary plate
┝	26	023-06-2	23004 Press Roller shaft
┝	27	JDB-1 Be	earing (303825)
┝	28	023-00-2	23024-1 Koller bracket
┝	29	SF-IWC I	$\frac{230 (32x54x1.5)}{2}$
ŀ	3U 91		22002 Each rollar
⊦	31 39	023-06-2	22002 Feed Foller
⊦	<u>ა</u> 2	U23-U6-2	aling igint begging (CEREEC)
┝	<u>১</u> ১ ০४	NO LETU	ening joint bearing (GE25EC)
┝	34 25		
ŀ	30 96		
	30		



ame	Serial number	Lower straightener sub component/number/name			
	21	003-06-23006 Base plate			
g)	22	023-00-23023 Plug			
	23	023-00-23025 Stop pad			
	24	023-00-23022-A1 U -shaped connector (cycling diameter 100)			
30	25	023-00-23011 Left plate			
2>	26	023-00-23016 Press cap			
d <9>	27	023-00-23042 Lower driving roller washer			
sher	28	SCA2-TC-100B-20			
	29	003-00-23050 Feeding bracket pad			
)	30	003-06-23030 Cylinder installation plate			
45	31	GB894. 2-86 axis use elastic block B type 30			
	32	023-00-23048 Transmission gear (1)			
asher	33	Deep groove ball bearings 6207-nR			
	34	023-00-23047 Transmission gear (2)			
	35	023-00-23046 Gear shaft			
	36	GB / T1096-1979 Ordinary flat key A 10 $ imes$ 32			
ate	37				
	38				
	39				
	40				





appro	ve			
Versi	on		А	
	3		<u>A</u>	
Serial	1-1-4		- h /	
number	iniet guide	e component/num	nper/name	

number	Inlet guide component/number/name
1	023-06-25007 Carrier shaft
2	023-06-25008 Carrier Roller
3	Deep groove ball bearings6205–2Z
4	GB894.2-86 Axis use elastic block B type 25
5	023-06-25002 Connecting plate
6	023-00-25003 Front baffle
7	023-00-25004 Bearing seat
8	Deep groove ball bearings6304-2Z
9	023-06-25017 Inlet upper roller
10	GB/T1096-1979Ordinary flat key $A10 imes 36$
11	023-00-23039 Feed gear
12	023-00-25018 Shaft sleeve
13	Deep groove ball bearings6206-2Z
14	$FT-H03-065(65 \times 95 \times 33)$
15	023-00-25001-01 Folding arm (1)
16	023-00-25005-02 Inlet right side plate welded
17	023-06-25006 Folding arm shaft
18	023-00-25009 Folding arm rod
19	SF-1X Bearing (283234)
20	Square shaped seat bearing UCF213
21	023-00-25005-01 Inlet left side plate welded
22	023-00-25001-02 Folding arm (2)
23	023-06-52013 Baffle
24	
25	

annro	
Versi	on A
	**
	17 18 Connect board component
Serial	
number	Inlet coil keeper component/number/name
1	023-00-22014 Rear guide roller shaft
2	GB893. 2-86 Elastic block B type 37 with holes 37
3	Deep groove ball bearings 6904-2Z
4	023-00-22022 Pad
5	GB894. 1-86 Elastic block A type A type A 20
6	023-00-22011 Short direction roller
7	023-00-22015 Eccentric shaft
8	GB893. 2-86 Circlips for holes B type 37
9	Deep groove ball bearings 6904-2Z

7	023-00-22015 Eccentric shaft
8	GB893. 2-86 Circlips for holes B type 37
9	Deep groove ball bearings 6904-2Z
10	023-00-22022 Pad
11	GB894. 1-86 Elastic block A type A type A 20
12	023-00-22001 Long direction roller
13	023-06-22020 Guide shaft
14	GB894. 1-86 Elastic block A type 35 of the shaft 35
15	023-06-22021 Guide roller
16	Deep groove ball bearings 6907-2z
17	023-00-22004 Connecting plate
18	SF-1X Bearing (202320)
19	023-06-22003 Guide roller board
20	023-00-22005 Guide direction roller board
21	023-00-22006 Nut press plate
22	023-00-22009 Inlet press plate
23	Thrust ball bearings 51104
24	023-00-22007 Right -rotation nut board
25	023-06-22002 Adjust screw
26	023-00-22013 Positioning press plate
27	023-00-22008 Left rotation nut plate
28	023-00-22018 Rear position block
29	023-00-22017 Front positioning board
30	023-00-22012 Adjus screw
31	Type 1 hexagonal nut C-Class(M14)[GB/T 41-2000]
32	Two -wheel spoke handleVRTP. 250A-20
33	023-00-22010 Positioning plate
34	023-00-22016 Support block
35	023-00-22019 Screw
36	